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Rockville, MD 20852 between 9 a.m. 
and 4 p.m., Monday through Friday, 
240–402–7500. Publicly available 
submissions may be seen in the docket. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Jaime Espinosa, Division of Field 
Enforcement, Office of Field Regulatory 
Operations, Office of Inspections and 
Investigations, Food and Drug 
Administration, 240–402–8743, or 
debarments@fda.hhs.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. Background 

Section 306(b)(1)(D) of the FD&C Act 
(21 U.S.C. 335a(b)(1)(D)) permits 
debarment of an individual from 
importing or offering for import any 
drug into the United States if FDA finds, 
as required by section 306(b)(3)(C) of the 
FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 335a(b)(3)(C)), that 
the individual has been convicted of a 
felony for conduct relating to the 
importation into the United States of 
any drug or controlled substance. 

On August 23, 2024, Mr. Henry was 
convicted as defined in section 306(l)(1) 
of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 335a(l)(1)), 
in the U.S. District Court for the Middle 
District of Tennessee when the court 
accepted his plea of guilty and entered 
judgment against him for the offense of 
Possession with Intent to Distribute a 
Schedule III Controlled Substance in 
violation of 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1). The 
underlying facts supporting the 
conviction are as follows: As contained 
in the Information, and in the Plea 
Agreement from his case, Mr. Henry 
owned and operated a gym called Power 
Athletics. In 2022 Mr. Henry purchased 
large volumes of anabolic steroids, 
including testosterone (17b- 
hydroxyandrost-4-en-3-one), a Schedule 
III controlled substance, from mostly 
overseas wholesale vendors. Mr. Henry 
then repackaged the drugs and sold 
them to customers under his own label, 
American Muscle Labs. On October 21, 
2022, law enforcement officers executed 
a search warrant at Mr. Henry’s gym, 
which included a hidden room housing 
his steroid laboratory. Mr. Henry 
admitted that on October 21, 2022, he 
possessed more than 60,000 units of 
Schedule III controlled substances, 
including testosterone (17b- 
hydroxyandrost-4-en-3-one), which he 
intended to use himself and sell to his 
customers. 

FDA sent Mr. Henry, by certified mail, 
on January 2, 2025, a notice proposing 
to debar him for a 5-year period from 
importing or offering for import any 
drug into the United States. The 
proposal was based on a finding under 
section 306(b)(3)(C) of the FD&C Act (21 
U.S.C. 335a(b)(3)(C)) that Mr. Henry’s 

felony conviction under Federal law for 
Possession with Intent to Distribute a 
Schedule III Controlled Substance in 
violation of 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1) was for 
conduct relating to the importation of 
any drug or controlled substance into 
the United States because you illegally 
imported the controlled substances at 
issue, including testosterone (17b- 
hydroxyandrost-4-en-3-one), and sold 
them to customers. In proposing a 
debarment period, FDA weighed the 
considerations set forth in section 
306(c)(3) of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 
335a(c)(3)) that it considered applicable 
to Mr. Henry’s offense and concluded 
that the offense warranted the 
imposition of a 5-year period of 
debarment. 

The proposal informed Mr. Henry of 
the proposed debarment and offered 
him an opportunity to request a hearing, 
providing him 30 days from the date of 
receipt of the letter in which to file the 
request, and advised him that failure to 
request a hearing constituted a waiver of 
the opportunity for a hearing and of any 
contentions concerning this action. Mr. 
Henry received the proposal and notice 
of opportunity for a hearing on January 
24, 2025. Mr. Henry failed to request a 
hearing within the timeframe prescribed 
by regulation and has, therefore, waived 
his opportunity for a hearing and 
waived any contentions concerning his 
debarment (21 CFR part 12). 

II. Findings and Order 

Therefore, the Division of Field 
Enforcement Director, Office of 
Inspections and Investigations, under 
section 306(b)(3)(C) of the FD&C Act (21 
U.S.C. 335a(b)(3)(C)), under authority 
delegated to the Director, Division of 
Enforcement, finds that Mr. Justin Cole 
Henry has been convicted of a felony 
under Federal law for conduct relating 
to the importation into the United States 
of any drug or controlled substance. 
FDA finds that the offense should be 
accorded a debarment period of 5 years 
as provided by section 306(c)(2)(A)(iii) 
of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 
335a(c)(2)(A)(iii)). 

As a result of the foregoing finding, 
Mr. Henry is debarred for a period of 5 
years from importing or offering for 
import any drug into the United States, 
effective (see DATES). Pursuant to section 
301(cc) of the FD&C Act (21 U.S.C. 
331(cc)), the importing or offering for 
import into the United States of any 
drug by, with the assistance of, or at the 
direction of Mr. Henry is a prohibited 
act. 

Dated: May 25, 2025. 

Grace R. Graham, 
Deputy Commissioner for Policy, Legislation, 
and International Affairs. 
[FR Doc. 2025–09646 Filed 5–28–25; 8:45 am] 
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AGENCY: Food and Drug Administration, 
HHS. 

ACTION: Notice; request for information; 
extension of comment period; 
correction. 

SUMMARY: The Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) is correcting a 
notice that appeared in the Federal 
Register on April 9, 2025. The 
document announced the extension of 
the comment period for the request for 
information entitled ‘‘Growing, 
Harvesting, Processing, and Distribution 
of Poppy Seeds—Industry Practices 
Related to Opiate Alkaloids.’’ The notice 
published with an error in the 
ADDRESSES section. This document 
corrects the error. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Holli Kubicki, Office of Policy, 
Regulations, and Information, Human 
Foods Program, Food and Drug 
Administration, 5001 Campus Dr., 
College Park, MD 20740, 240–402–2378. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In the 
Federal Register of Wednesday, April 9, 
2025 (90 FR 15243), in FR Doc. 2025– 
06049, on page 15244, in the first 
column, in the third sentence of the 
ADDRESSES section, the date until which 
the https://www.regulations.gov 
electronic filing system will accept 
comments is corrected to read ‘‘June 16, 
2025.’’ 

Dated: May 22, 2025. 

Grace R. Graham, 
Deputy Commissioner for Policy, Legislation, 
and International Affairs. 
[FR Doc. 2025–09681 Filed 5–28–25; 8:45 am] 
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